ARTICULATION AND GENERAL STUDIES COMMITTEE

ByLaws

June 27, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I: Overview of Act 94-2021
ARTICLE II: Articulation and General Studies Committee (AGSC)1
ARTICLE III: AGSC Membership2
ARTICLE IV: Officers, Election Procedures, and Removal of Officers
ARTICLE V: Meetings and Quorum
ARTICLE VI: Changes to Articulation Agreement and General Studies Curriculum
ARTICLE VII: Statewide Transfer and Articulation Reporting System (STARS)4
ARTICLE VIII: Administration of AGSC and STARS4
ARTICLE IX: Changes to Bylaws5
ACT 94-202

ARTICULATION AND GENERAL STUDIES COMMITTEE (AGSC)

Bylaws

ARTICLE I: OVERVIEW OF ACT 94-202

The passage of ACT 94-202 by the legislature in 1994 amended Section 16-5-8, Code of Alabama 1975 to facilitate the process for articulation of degree program requirements and transfer of academic credit between and among institutions.¹ The broad provisions of the law were intended 1) to provide for a uniform articulation agreement among all institutions of higher education as well as a statewide general studies curriculum; 2) to provide for the computation of grade point averages of certain transferred students; 3) to specify that the Act would not impede the objectives of historically black institutions; 4) to provide for implementation conditioned on the participation of certain institutions; and 5) to specify certain reporting requirements.

To implement provisions specified in the Act, the legislation provided for the creation of an Articulation and General Studies Committee. The Act designated the membership of the Committee, the appointment process and rotation of leadership. The legislation also designated the agency responsible for developing the computerized database and designing student contractual agreements to be honored among all public institutions as well as framed guidelines for compliance.

ARTICLE II:

ARTICULATION AND GENERAL STUDIES COMMITTEE (AGSC)

The AGSC establishes fiscal and administrative policies and procedures for ensuring that the authority ascribed to the committee in the legislation is fulfilled. In addition, the AGSC provides fiduciary and administrative oversight for all AGSC activities including the Statewide Articulation and Reporting System (STARS) office located on the campus of Troy University, the host institution. The AGSC appoints the Executive Director of AGSC/STARS and operates in concert with the Executive Director to monitor AGSC funding and ensure that the priorities of AGSC are carried out.

Legislative Responsibilities Assigned to AGSC.

1) Develop a statewide freshman and sophomore level general studies curriculum to be taken at all colleges and universities no later than September 1, 1998.

2) Develop and adopt for the freshman and sophomore years a statewide articulation agreement for the transfer of credit among all public institutions of higher education no later than September 1, 1999. Under this articulation agreement, all applicable credits transferred from a two-year institution to a four-year institution shall fulfill degree requirements at the four-year institution as if they were earned at the four-year institution;

¹ See Section 16-5-8 (e)

3) Examine the need for a uniform course numbering system, course titles, and course descriptions.
4) Upon adoption of the general studies curriculum and articulation agreement, the committee shall continue its duty and authority prescribed in the legislation. In the case of problems in the administration or interpretation of the articulation agreement or the general studies curriculum, institutions shall present the problem to the AGSC for resolution.

ARTICLE III: AGSC MEMBERSHIP

Official Voting Members. The legislation provided for the creation of a 10-member articulation and general studies committee composed as follows: two representing the state's regional universities, three representing the state's two-year colleges (one of whom shall be black), and one representing each of the following: Auburn University, the University of Alabama System, the University of South Alabama, Alabama State University, and Alabama A&M University. In addition to the 10-member Committee, alternates were designated to serve in the absence of appointed members.

Non-Voting Members. The Executive Director of the Alabama Commission on Higher Education (ACHE) and the Executive Director of the Statewide Transfer Articulation and Reporting System (STARS), the computerized advising system operated by Troy University, serve as nonvoting members. The ACHE serves as the fiscal agent for the AGSC/STARS.

Selection of Voting Members. Unless provided by the governing board of the respective institution the representatives to the Articulation and General Studies Committee shall be selected as follows: The presidents of the state's regional universities shall select the two representatives of these institutions. The Alabama Community System Board of Trustees shall select the representatives of the state's two-year colleges. The Chancellor of the University of Alabama System and the Presidents of Auburn University, the University of South Alabama, Alabama State University, and Alabama A&M University shall each select the representative of their institutions. It is the intent of the Legislature that women be represented on the committee.

Alternate Voting Members. Chief executive officers of the institutions or systems may appoint alternate voting members to serve in place of an official voting member. For regionals and two-year college representatives, when the number of voting members absent is less than the number of alternate members present, the alternate member(s) who will cast votes will be identified at the time of roll call such that there will be only three votes cast among the two-year institutions and only two votes cast among the regional universities.

ARTICLE IV:

OFFICERS, ELECTION PROCEDURES, AND REMOVAL OF OFFICERS

Officers. The Officers of the AGSC are the Chair and the Chair-Elect. The Chair is responsible for convening and presiding over all scheduled meetings and other activities of the AGSC as well as appointing ad hoc subcommittees. The Chair-Elect assists the Chair and serves in the absence of the Chair. The Chair, the Immediate Past Chair, and the Chair-Elect serve as an Executive Committee.

Election Procedures. The officers are elected by a simple majority vote of the Official Voting Members in attendance at the spring meeting.

Terms of Office. The Chair of the AGSC rotates annually between a voting representative of the four-year institutions and a voting representative of the two-year institutions. The newly elected Chair and Chair-Elect begin their terms during the summer meeting.

Removal of Officers. An officer may be removed by a simple majority of the voting members of the AGSC. A petition for removal signed by at least three official voting members of AGSC and providing a justification for removal must be presented to the AGSC membership two weeks in advance of a meeting scheduled for its consideration. Should the Chair be removed from office, the Chair-Elect will assume the office of Chair and a new Chair-Elect will be elected.

Secretary to the AGSC. The Administrative Assistant to the Executive Director of the Alabama Commission on Higher Education serves as Secretary to the AGSC and is responsible for maintaining the historical record of all proceedings as well as posting notices to the Secretary of State website in compliance with the Open Meetings Act.

ARTICLE V MEETINGS AND QUORUM

Meetings. The AGSC is required to meet annually, or at other times as convened by the chair. Typically, meetings are scheduled in the fall, spring, and summer. Any voting member of the AGSC may request that a meeting be called under special circumstances upon approval by the Executive Committee. Meetings are subject to compliance with the Alabama Open Meetings Act (OMA) legislation (Act 2005-40) as amended.

Quorum. Six or more voting members constitute a quorum. No official business may be conducted at an AGSC meeting unless a quorum is declared in accord with the provisions of the OMA as it may be amended from time to time. The OMA stipulates that a quorum of the committee needs to be present at the site of the meeting in order to conduct business. Alternate voting members are counted in the determination of a quorum in the

absence of the voting member. Voting members off-site are eligible to vote; they are not eligible to be counted as part of the quorum.

ARTICLE VI

CHANGES TO ARTICULATION AGREEMENT AND GENERAL STUDIES CURRICULUM

A super majority of eight voting members shall be required to approve changes to the articulation agreement and to the general studies curriculum.

ARTICLE VII

STATEWIDE TRANSFER AND ARTICULATION REPORTING SYSTEM (STARS)

The computerized advisement system for students operated by Troy University and existing on the effective date of the ACT 94-202 was designated as the web-based data system to ensure students at each two-year institution accredited by the Southern Association Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC) were able to enter into a contract with a four-year institution guaranteeing the transfer of credit earned for courses taken at the two-year institution. Under this contract, all agreed upon credits transferred from a two-year institution to a four-year institution would fulfill degree requirements at the four-year institution as if they were earned at the four-year institution. Information regarding this advisement and contracting program is to be included in the official catalog of each institution of higher education. All public two-year and four-year institutions in the state accredited by the Commission on Colleges shall participate in this system.

ARTICLE VIII ADMINISTRATION OF AGSC AND STARS

AGSC/STARS Office. Located on the campus of Troy University

AGSC/STARS Executive Director. The AGSC/STARS Executive Director serves at the pleasure of the AGSC and has the dual responsibility of carrying out the policies and procedures of the AGSC to ensure that the authority ascribed to the AGSC in the legislation is fulfilled as well as serving as the Director of the STARS Office. The AGSC/STARS Executive Director has overall responsibility for day-to-day operation, management, coordination, and promotion of the STARS program including: 1) supervising office staff; 2) managing the budget; 3) assessing the effectiveness of the web-based STARS program; 4) coordinating activities of the faculty committees responsible for course specifications, review, and approval; 5) and preparing an Annual Report for distribution to the legislature and presentation to the ACHE. All procedures for the operation of STARS are subject to approval by the AGSC.

Associate Director/Information Technology Manager. The Information Technology Manager is responsible for developing and executing plans that support the STARS IT needs. Activities include, but are not limited to, 1) ensuring proper functioning of the information processing system and overseeing necessary upgrades; 2) resolving technical issues; 3) maintaining web pages and data bases; 4) providing timely, accurate and consistent technical support for institutions served by the STARS office; 5) building Transfer Guides for AGSC approved templates; 6) compiling usage reports for institutions; and 7) making presentations at regularly scheduled meetings of the AGSC. The Information Technology Manager reports to the Executive Director. **Fiscal Agent.** Funding for the support of the articulated computerized system is a line item in the ACHE budget. The ACHE is the fiscal agent for these funds.

ARTICLE IX CHANGES TO THE BYLAWS

Proposed changes to the Bylaws must be distributed to the members of the AGSC 30 days prior to the meeting at which they will be considered.

A super majority of eight voting members of the AGSC in attendance at a scheduled AGSC meeting is required to amend the Bylaws. Amendments to the Bylaws become effective upon passage.

Articulation and General Studies Committee ByLaws Signature Page

June 27, 2017

1

Dr. Pamela Arrington – Alabama A&M University

2

Dr. Constance Relihan – Auburn University

Jarsha N. Adams

Dr. Marsha Adams – University of Alabama in Huntsville

20,

Dr. Mar Angela Coleman – University of South Alabama

5.

Dr. Hal Fulmer – Troy University

6.

Qr. Patricia Sims – Athens State University

7.

Dr. Suzanne Ozment - University of Montevallo

8.

Dr. Bruce Crawford -- Lawson State Community College

Rieflel Hunhert 9

Dr. Herbert Riedel – Lurleen B. Wallace Community College

Run Rothamy 10.

Dr. Russ Rothamer – Alabama Community College System

ACT 94-202

Enrolled, An Act

To amend Section 16-5-8, Code of Alabama 1975, to provide for a uniform articulation agreement among all institutions of higher education and a statewide general studies curriculum; to provide for the computation of grade point averages of certain transferred students; to specify that this act shall not impede the objectives of historically black institutions; to provide for implementation conditioned on the participation of certain institutions; and to specify certain reporting requirements.

Be it enacted by The Legislature of Alabama

Section 1. Section 16-5-8, Code of Alabama 1975, is amended to read as follows:

Section 16-5-8

"(a) The commission on higher education is authorized to review periodically all new and existing programs and units of instruction, research, and public service funded by state appropriations at the state universities and colleges and to share with the appropriate governing board, through the president of the institution, and state legislature, its recommendations.

"(b) The commission shall seek through the use of advisory committees to study needless duplication of education, research, or service programs and programs which are not adequately provided in the state, and shall make findings and recommendations to the institutions, the governor, and the legislature that would strengthen the total program of higher education in the state.

"(c) The governing boards of public institutions of higher education in this state and the campuses under their governance or supervision shall not undertake the establishment of any new unit or program of instruction for academic credit with state funds before submitting plans for the new unit or program to the commission for its review, evaluation, and approval. Not state funds shall be expended by any public institution on any new unit or program of instruction, which has not been approved by the commission. Any plan submitted to the commission, or its staff, and not receiving final action by the commission within 10 months of submission shall be considered approved. The term 'new unit of instruction,' includes the establishment of a college, school, division, or institute, and includes the establishment of any new branch or campus. The term does not include reasonable extensions or alternations of existing curricula, or programs, which have a direct relationship to existing programs. The commission may, under its rulemaking power, define the character of the reasonable extensions and alterations.

"(d) The commission shall have the authority to authorize and regulate off-campus offerings, new or existing. An exception to this off-campus authority is provided for the branch campuses of universities or branch campuses of junior colleges in existence at the time of passage of this chapter whose fall 1978 registrations exceeded 500 class enrollments and branch campuses of universities operating prior to 1960. For those branches, which began operating since 1960, the commission shall present its recommendation for the continuation or termination of each branch with full findings of fact to the legislature before a public joint meeting of the education committees of the house and senate no later than the fifth legislative day of the 1981 regular session of the legislature. In making the recommendation, the commission shall not use the ratio of full-time faculty to part-time faculty and/or a requirement to attend the main campus for degree completion as a part of its judgment of the quality of a program or branch campus. The education committee of each house shall report to its respective house with a concurrence or nonconcurrence on each recommendation of the commission. Debate on each recommendation shall be limited to

one hour of continuous uninterrupted discussion for each recommendation and at the end of the time, it shall be mandatory that the president of the senate and the speaker of the house shall in their respective houses call for a recorded vote. The resolution by simple majority of both houses is required to affirm a commission recommendation. No more than one branch shall be continued or terminated in one resolution.

"(e) The computerized advisement system for students operated by Troy State University which includes a comprehensive undergraduate program and course information for all public two-year and four-year institutions of higher education, existing on the effective date of this amendatory act, shall ensure students at each two-year institution accredited by the Southern Association's Commissions on Colleges, the opportunity to enter into a contract with a four-year institution guaranteeing the transfer of credit earned for courses taken at the two-year institution pursuant to the terms of the contract provided the student is admitted to the four- year institution. Under this contract, all agreed upon credits transferred from a two-year institution to a four-year institution. Information regarding this advisement and contracting program shall be included in the official catalog of each institution of higher education. All public two-year and four-year institutions in the state accredited by the Commission on Colleges shall participate in this system.

"In addition, there is created an articulation and general studies committee which shall consist of ten members composed as follows: two representing the state's regional universities, three representing the state's two-year colleges (one of whom shall be black), one representing each of the following: Auburn University, the University of Alabama System, the University of South Alabama, Alabama State University, and Alabama A&M University. The Executive Director of the Alabama Commission on Higher Education and the Director of the computerized advising system operated by Troy State University shall serve as nonvoting members.

"Unless provided by the governing board of the respective institution, the representatives to the articulation and general studies committee shall be selected in the following manner: The presidents of the state's regional universities shall select the two representatives of these institutions on the committee. The State Board of Education* shall select the representatives of the state's two-year colleges on the committee. The Chancellor of the University of Alabama System and the Presidents of Auburn University, the University of South Alabama, Alabama State University, and Alabama A&M University shall each select the representative of their institutions on the committee. It is the intent of the Legislature that women be represented on the committee. This committee, utilizing whatever resources and task forces it deems appropriate, shall develop no later than September 1, 1998, a statewide freshman and sophomore level general studies curriculum to be taken at all colleges and universities. Nothing herein shall be interpreted as restricting any institution from requiring additional general studies courses beyond the statewide general studies curriculum.

"This committee shall also develop and adopt no later than September 1, 1999, for the freshman and sophomore years, a statewide articulation agreement for the transfer of credit among all public institutions of higher education. Under this articulation agreement, all applicable credits transferred from a two-year institution to a four-year institution shall fulfill degree requirements at the four-year institution as if they were earned at the four-year institution. The committee shall further examine the need for a uniform course numbering system, course titles, and descriptions.

"A four-fifths vote of the entire voting membership of the committee shall be required for the adoption of the articulation agreement and general studies curriculum. Upon adoption of the articulation agreement and general studies curriculum, this committee shall continue its duty and authority prescribed herein. The committee shall meet at least annually, or at other times as convened by the chair. The committee shall elect annually a chair from its membership. The chair of the committee shall rotate annually between a representative of the four-year institutions and a representative of the two-year institutions.

"In case of problems in the administration or interpretation of the articulation agreement or the general studies curriculum, institutions shall present the problem to the articulation and general studies committee for resolution. A majority decision of the committee shall be final and binding.

"The budget recommendation of the commission shall not include an appropriation for institutions of higher education violating the stipulations of this section.

"(f) Nothing in this or any section, however, shall be construed to prohibit any institution of higher education in this state from seeking and securing by separate bill the approval of the legislature for any new unit or program of instruction, research or public service denied approval by the commission, in which case the action of the legislature, when approved by the governor or otherwise upon becoming law, is final.

"(g) Colleges and universities conducting off-campus offerings on military reservations are exempt from the commission's regulatory review and approval authority for those offerings on the military reservation."

Section 2. Nothing in this act shall be deemed to require a public institution to include any grades earned at another institution in the computation of a student's grade point average at that institution. However, if any public institution includes freshman and sophomore level course grades earned at any other public institution in the computation of a student's grade point average, all freshman and sophomore level course grades earned at all public institutions shall be included in the computation.

Section 3. Nothing in this act shall be interpreted or used in any way to discourage or impede the efforts or abilities of the historically black institutions or their officials to carry out the mandates and objectives of federal court decrees and to provide equal access for all citizens of Alabama to full benefits of higher education.

Section 4. It is the intent of the Legislature that all two- year and four-year institutions of higher education in the state comply with the intent of this act and the guidelines developed pursuant to it (unless otherwise exempted by this act). In the event of noncompliance by any institution governed by a board of trustees established by the Constitution with the statewide articulation agreement as provided in this act of the 1994 Regular Session amending Section 16-5-8 of the Code of Alabama 1975, no other two-year or four-year institution shall be required to comply with the statewide articulation agreement. These two-year and four- year institutions shall continue to comply with all other provisions of Section 16-5-8, Code of Alabama 1975. The Alabama Commission on Higher Education shall notify the Legislative council, the governing body of each four-year institution, and the State Board of Education within 30 days of any failure to comply with this act or guidelines.

Section 5. Pursuant to Section 16-5-7 and 16-5-8 of the Code of Alabama 1975, the Alabama Commission on Higher Education shall make regular reports to the Legislature regarding the implementation of this act.

Section 6. The provisions of this act are severable. If any part of this act is declared invalid or unconstitutional, that declaration shall not affect the part, which remains.

Section 7. All laws or parts of the laws, which conflict with this act, are repealed.

Section 8. This act shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval by the Governor, or upon its otherwise becoming a law.

* The State Board of Education has now been replace by the Alabama Community College System Board of Trustees. This was done in in ACT 2015-125 under section §16-60-110.1.



Senate - March 10, 1994 - Amended and Passed

House - March 10, 1994 - Concurred in Senate Amendment

Signed by Governor Jim Folsom on March 17, 1994